COMMISSIONERS OF PUBLIC WORKS
Minutes of May 24, 2007

A public hearing and meeting of the Board of the Greenwood Commissioners of
Public Works was held on Thursday, May 24, 2007, at 5:00 p.m., in the board room at
121 West Court Avenue.

In attendance:

Gene P. Hancock Steve Reeves Ron Lemon Sheree Brown
Michael G. Monaghan Kenneth Barnett  Jeff Meredith Lee Roper
Henry O. Watts Denise Ogletree  Jeff Auman Jetf Fowler

II.

II1.

Jetf Chapman Carlos Commetto

Vicki Knott Vickie Gorham

Stacia May Melinda Bishop

Curtis Burnett General Public (see sheet)

Chairman Watts called the meeting to order.

Chairman Watts gave the statement of compliance with the notification
provisions of the Freedom of Information Act. Chairman Watts stated the
purpose of the public hearing which was to receive comments from the
public regarding a proposed 3.8% increase in natural gas rates, and revisions
in electric and water rates which may result in an increase or decrease
depending on usage. Commissioner Hancock gave the invocation.

Ms. Sheree Brown with Utility Advisors’ Network explained that the purpose
of the public hearing and meeting was to present an update of the 2006
combined system rate study to incorporate 2007 revenue requirements; to
determine if the CPW’s present rates are sufficient to cover the costs of
operating, owning, and maintaining the electric, water and gas systems; and
to determine if CPW should modify any rate design to more appropriately
recover costs and meet market conditions. She stated that they looked at
revenue requirements for the total system broken down into electric, water,
and gas. She noted significant increases related to budget in late 2006
including a Transco pipeline adjustment that would be costly for the gas
system. She stated that a decision was made at that time to wait and look at
the 2007 revenue requirement. Ms. Brown explained the method to develop
the test revenue requirement based on the 2007 budget that included
allocation of the administrative costs which are not assigned to any particular
system, but must be recovered by the system as a whole, and purchased
power and natural cost calculation. She stated that revenues were calculated
based on a weather-normalized forecast and used for purchased power and



Minutes of May 24, 2007

Page 2

natural gas calculation. Ms. Brown noted that rate design issues were also
evaluated, pointing out that rate design may not change the level of overall
rate recovery, but may change how it is recovered from certain customers.
The purpose of evaluating rate design issues is to be sure that there are not
subsidies from one customer class to another or from certain customer
characteristics. Ms. Brown stated that rates should be fair to all customers
based on their load characteristics and should be evaluated over time to
maintain a fair and equitable rate design. Ms. Brown reported that they also
discussed the need to issue additional debt in order to fund capital
improvements through a bond issue of approximately $10 million. It was
determined that we wanted to defer the principal and interest payments on
this bond issue until 2009 to coincide with the reduction in debt service on the
2003 bond issue. She pointed out that the 2003 issue is pretty substantial in
terms of the debt service incurred. She pointed out that by deferring the
principal and interest on the new issue to 2009, current rate impacts can be
prevented and rate impacts minimized in 2009. Ms. Brown provided an
explanation of the effects of the 2007 bond issue with deferral. She noted
reduction in debt service in 2009 of $426,000 for electric; $1,041,529 for water;
and a slight increase shown for gas because they did not receive any of the
2003 issue. She referred to 2009 debt service on the 2007 bond issue. Ms.
Brown stated that in 2009, the impacts and debt service show that overall
there would be a reduction on the electric and water systems, but an increase
in gas because the 2007 bond issue would be partially allocated to gas for
some improvements.

Ms. Brown provided an overview of total revenue excess or deficiency for
each system. She provided an explanation of how the present revenues were
tirst calculated and then fuel and purchased power adjustment revenue was
added. She noted that purchased power fuel does affect the bottom line of a
bill and would get a rate increase; however, the purchased power fuel
adjustment portion is pass through costs that go through adjustment clauses
each month. There may be timing differences from month-to-month as to
when it is collected; however, over time it should be completely a wash
between what is collected and what is spent. Ms. Brown referred to the base
rate revenue requirement for electric of $17,333,684; $9,674,163 for water; and
$7,117,040 for gas. She noted that pipeline demand charges are $3.4 million
due to the Transco increase where they had been $2.5 million last year. She
pointed out an increase of $900,000 just in the last couple of months which
accounts for a big portion of the overall revenue increase requirement for gas.
Commissioner Monaghan asked if that was in the base rate. Ms. Brown
responded that it is right now, but they are looking at separating and moving
it into a separate charge to be able to track it and make decisions if and when



Minutes of May 24, 2007

Page 3

FERC decides to give a refund. She added that another reason would be to
provide a “distribution only” rate to some of the larger industrial customers.
Ms. Brown continued by noting a 1.69% revenue excess in electric; .01% in
water; and a revenue deficiency of 3.8% overall in gas. Ms. Brown stated that
because electric and water are pretty much at a breakeven, they simply
looked at rate design issues. Ms. Brown noted that the best time to implement
rate design changes are when you are at a breakeven position in a cost of
service study or a rate study, because it helps to avoid “pancaking” with
customers who might receive an increase through a rate design change along
with a rate increase.

Ms. Brown pointed out concerns with large power rate design in the electric
system due to the way the current rates are structured. She stated that
customers with exactly the same load characteristics in terms of load factor
are allowed to have much bigger discounts just because they are a bigger
customer. She provided an example of a 50 kWh customer that would not get
the type of benefit even with a 100% load factor as a 1,500 kWh customer with
the exact same load factor. Ms. Brown noted that under the wholesale power
supply contract, the marginal cost of trying to bring in larger customers with
good load characteristics would be greater than marginal revenues. That
makes it difficult to add new customers who should otherwise be very
attractive to our system. She explained that adding larger customers helps the
whole system to share the fixed costs and thereby bringing down the cost for
everyone. Commissioner Monaghan referred to a previous slide and inquired
as to whether it was 3.8% of the base. Ms. Brown responded that it was 3.8%
overall. Commissioner Monaghan asked about calculating overall when the
purchased fuel is a pass through. Ms. Brown responded that we want to show
what people will see on their bills. There will be a higher increase if you look
at base rates only, but what they will see on their bills would only be about
3.8% overall on average for the system based on expected fuel costs.
Otherwise, it would look worse than it really is. It is not as bad as it would
seem when you look at the total bill. Somebody with a $100 bill will not see a
$20 increase; they will see about an increase of around $3 to $4. Manager
Reeves noted that the base rate itself would go up around 20% to 21%., but
that would be misleading to the public who would be anticipating a 20%
increase on their bill when it is actually more like 3.8%. Ms. Brown continued
with an explanation of rate design revisions for large power. She stated that
they tested those designs with the objective of wanting to have a margin over
the incremental wholesale power supply cost for any new load brought on.
She emphasized an effort to not have extreme rate changes for any customer
and they were phased in over time where they could. Ms. Brown commented
that the objective was to remain competitive against Duke Power’s rates, and



Minutes of May 24, 2007

Page 4

to have equitable rates where customers with similar load factors and
characteristics would receive similar benefit. She stated that a rate was
designed that would best meet all of those rate design objectives knowing
that all cannot be met, but all must be balanced. She referred to the proposed
large power rate design showing that the customer charge was left “as is”.
Ms. Brown pointed out that the current rate structure gives a “discount” for
energy used over 400 hours. She explained that basically somebody with a
“demand”, which is the maximum that they place on the system in a
particular hour, causes CPW to incur demand cost from the wholesale power
supplier. If they use their energy associated with that demand for a lot more
hours, they have a higher load factor and those are the customers that would
fall into this energy over 400 hours use. Ms. Brown noted a pretty substantial
decrease for those customers. Right now the first 400 kWh hours pays almost
$.0458; over that 400 hours use drops to $.0238. The problem comes in
because the existing rate design within the first 400 hours has these four
different blocks (first 10,000 kWh, next 90,000, next 150,000, and over 250,000).
She stated that essentially that gives a benefit to someone for nothing more
than their size and has nothing to do with their load characteristics. A very
large customer with a much poorer load factor will still fall into the higher
blocks and get a discount than a smaller customer who might have a better
load factor and just too small to get out of the first 10,000 kWh. She pointed
out that in an effort to alleviate that situation, the first three blocks were
combined and a little more was moved into “demand”. She referred to the
contract with the wholesale supplier whereby CPW pays $8.65 per kWh for
base load capacity, and between $4.50 to $5.50, depending on the season, for
supplemental capacity. Ms. Brown noted that if that much is paid for demand
and our cost is recovered through energy cost, there is a mismatch between
fixed costs that we are incurring on a demand basis versus the energy. Ms.
Brown provided charts to show the impact through a rate comparison for
large power customers. Ms. Brown noted that CPW was able to compete with
Duke Power very well within all of the rate designs. A smaller 50 kW
customer who at this point would not get the benefits would actually benefit
from the new rate design because some of the unfair benefits of the huge
customers were brought down. To show the effects, Ms. Brown noted that
with 1,500 kW, the proposed rate is slightly greater. The differences are not
huge but it does start to bring us toward a more equitable rate design and
allows marginal revenue for those new customers we are trying to propose
over and above what is paid to bring that load on the system. Ms. Brown
stated that this does not change the overall revenue received from the system,
it simply “divvies” it up differently. Chairman Watts inquired about average
usage for a homeowner. Mr. Meredith responded that it averages around
1,000 kWh per month. Ms. Brown noted that residential rates were not being



Minutes of May 24, 2007

Page 5

touched. She summarized electric by noting that it is essentially at a break
even position. The changes suggested to the large power rate would help us
to become more equitable, to start meeting other rate design objectives, and
would still allow us to compete for new load.

Ms. Brown reported on the water system and current revenue requirement..
A capacity fee analysis was also done. She pointed out that the current rate
does not reflect the American Water Works Association (AWWA) meter
rating factors, and currently there is no charge in the rate design for the first
400 cf. Ms. Brown stated that the first concern was to establish a monthly
incremented service availability charge based upon standardized capacity
criteria established by the AWWA relative to the size of the water meter. She
noted another concern with moving towards elimination of the 0 to 400 CF
“discount”. She added that the way the rate is now, those who only take 0 to
400 CF do not have a charge there and only pay the meter charge. Then when
you get to the middle, the rate goes up to the highest point and over 15,000
CF per month, the rate goes way down and essentially gives these customers
about a 60% discount. She noted that there really is no justification in a water
system to give that type of a discount for using more water, and the goal was
to start to move toward of elimination of the 0 to 400 CF discount and to
soften the discount for usage over 15,000 CF per month. Ms. Brown provided
information in equivalency factors used by AWWA. Commissioner
Monaghan provided an example of a person using 200 CF and asked if that
would go down. Manager Reeves responded that the total bill may not be less
because the basic facility charge will have to go up because it was insufficient
in the current rates. Commissioner Monaghan stated his understanding that
the current meter charge covers the first 400 CF. Ms. Brown responded that
the guy that is paying pays the $7.84 and does not pay anything else, but the
$7.84 is not sufficient to cover the cost that should be there if you were to do it
based on true costs incurred by system. Therefore, when the rate was
redesigned, they did not take the rate and cut it in half in order to put charges
into the first 400 CF. The goal was to get to a more cost based rate overall. Ms.
Brown explained that the person at 400 CF currently pays $7.84 and it would
go to $9.70, for an increase of $1.86 in the overall charges. Ms. Brown stated
that water would not increase overall, but there are rate adjustments whereby
some would realize an increase and some a decrease depending on their
consumption. The overall system does not receive an increase or a decrease.
The larger customers are getting hit too because they were falling into the
greater than 15,000 CF. We are attempting to levelize to be more equitable for
all customers because the first gallon does not cost any less or more than the
tenth gallon, so straight across the board is the most equitable type rate.
Commissioner Monaghan stated concern over residential customers’ rates



Minutes of May 24, 2007

Page 6

going up. Mr. Chapman provided an example stating that the average
household uses about 4,000 gallons per month which would equate to an
increase of around $0.04 on their bill. Ms. Brown continued with a bill
comparison chart based on 6,000 gallons usage in a month with the proposed
rate change and noted that the total month charge would be $15.15. She stated
that in a comparison with other water systems in the state, CPW would fall
pretty much in the middle. Mr. Chapman noted that in Columbia, the $12.72
number is misleading because they have assessed a flat hydrant fee of $5 that
they residents pay monthly making that charge $17.72. Commissioner
Monaghan noted that this was for “inside city” rates, and noted that the
“outside city” charge was 80% higher. Ms. Brown continued by stating that in
addition to the water rate design for base rates, they also looked at the
capacity cost incurred by the system. She explained that a capacity fee is
basically a one-time charge that is implemented to recover the costs
associated with capital investments in order to provide service to future users
of the system. She stated that a fee analysis was done to determine cost on a
per gallon basis and per residential unit, and what the cost would be should
you implement a capacity fee. Using the AWWA meter factors, the analysis
showed that costs could be covered with a $1,080 charge for a typical 5/8-in.
or ¥-in. meter. She noted discussion at the last meeting whereby they had
determined they did not want to go that far at once but would prefer to phase
it in starting at $500. She referred to a phase-in ranked by meter size by the
AWWA meter factor starting at 5/8-in. at $500 and going up to 8-in at $40,000.
Ms. Brown then provided a comparison of these capacity fees versus other
utilities, noting that the average is $1,023, but by phasing it in, it puts CPW
third. Commissioner Monaghan explained that this $500 would be for a new
home construction and the impact of that new home, noting that we had
never had this before. It is a one-time fee for a new connection. Ms. Brown
noted that there is not a phase-in plan; they will start with this and re-
evaluate each year and the Commissioners would determine if and when
there is a need to raise it based on actual cost. Commissioner Monaghan
asked how much was spent just this past year on the water plant alone.
Manager Reeves responded that it was in the $3 million plus range due to
regulatory upgrades. Commissioner Hancock added that CPW has cheap
water that is also good water, there is plenty of it, and is recognized as the
fourth best in the United States.

Ms. Brown explained revenue requirements issues faced for the gas system
and stated that the trend of warmer weather has reduced sales levels over the
last ten years, resulting in the need for a rate increase to cover fixed costs of
providing service. She stated that in addition, even though sales have gone
down, customers have gone up. We have more customers to service and yet



Minutes of May 24, 2007

Page 7

they are buying less gas. She noted that the trend of warmer weather seemed
to be continuing. She stated that in developing the cost of providing service,
they looked at a ten-year weather normalized load expected to be sold this
year. In addition, Transco has requested an increase at FERC resulting in a
32% increase in pipeline demand charges and an 8.3% increase in CPW’s non-
fuel budget. Ms. Brown further explained that when CPW purchases gas from
the hub, they have to bring the gas to the city gate; they have to basically
transport that gas. There is a company that owns all of the pipelines and does
that transportation. We have to contract to make sure that there is enough
capacity on the pipeline so that when it gets cold and everybody turns on
furnaces, etc., there will be enough capacity to bring the amount of gas that
will be needed. Ms. Brown stated that CPW does an excellent job of
controlling these costs and actually has a program where they try to release
capacity in months that it is not needed. Last year that cost was about $2.5
million; this year it has gone up to $3.4 million effective March 1, 2007. She
noted that it is subject to some sort of refund and was sent to FERC for a
decision. If they decide the rate increase is not justified at that level, they can
reduce it. She added that it could be three or four years before that decision is
made. If they do they can come back and order them to make refunds with
interest. At that point, one of the things we are looking at doing is moving
this into a separate charge so that it can be fairly recovered at CPW’s actual
cost with no margin so that CPW would have the ability to monitor and treat
the customers fairly if and when an adjustment is made by FERC. For now,
we are paying and have had this 8.3% increase in the non-fuel budget for this
cost alone. Ms. Brown continued with the presentation and referred to a
previous slide showing a 3.8% overall need for a rate increase with gas
included. She noted that in calculating that, they look at which classes are
causing the cost on the system and at appropriate ways of allocating that on
an equitable basis. She provided an overview of system cost of service
analysis showing a breakdown of the allocated costs of service. She explained
that they started with present rates given the weather-normalized load
forecast with the expected sales from each class and what would be recovered
in the test year on present base rates. They then add gas revenues that are
expected to be recovered to get total revenues for each class. The base rate
revenue requirement consists of all operating and maintenance costs
including salaries, trucks, and everything necessary to maintain the
distribution system and administration allocations, to pay debt service, etc. ,
except for the gas. She stated that she had now removed the pipeline demand
charges to put that into a separate “bucket”. Right now it is all recovered in
the base rates. She noted that total base rate and pipeline demand charge
revenue requirement now is $10.5 million. This means that we will be $1.751
million short on the total bill for the total cost of providing service under base



Minutes of May 24, 2007

Page 8

rates and pipeline demand charges on a weather-normalized test year. When
compared with total revenues that is a 3.8% increase; compared against base
rates only, it is 20%, but what will be seen on the bill will be more like 3.8%.
In looking at different classes, that equates to almost 7% for residential and
commercial and firm industrial and interruptible industrial have a smaller
increase primarily due to the way the pipeline demand charges are allocated.
She noted that with interruptible industrial we have the ability to interrupt
them and therefore we can arrange for our pipeline capacity in a manner that
allows us to release that capacity because we can interrupt them. Therefore,
they do not get a full allocation of those pipeline demand charges. She added
that is pretty standard in the industry because those customers have given us
the ability to control and reduce our costs by allowing them to be interrupted.
Commissioner Monaghan stated that depending on the consumption of gas
with weather normalized, it would raise or lower the required increase. Ms.
Brown responded that was correct, but there had to be some starting point to
set rates and that was done on weather-normalized. She added that even with
the weather-normalized forecast for the test year, the first four months of 2007
are already less than what was forecasted. Ms. Brown stated that they went
back and looked at sales and the number of customers from 1996 to 2006. She
pointed out reductions in sales for the total system, residential and
commercial classes, whereas there were small percentage increases in
customers. Even with the addition of about 3,000 customers, gas sales have
gone down. Commissioner Hancock noted an incentive program to try to
add load and investments made in things such as rights-of-way in order to
get the new schools back in as customers to keep load going. Ms. Brown
continued that almost all cost other than gas are fixed costs and are incurred
to put pipes in the ground and to maintain them and to have the staff. To the
extent that we sell less gas, we take a hit. When we sell less gas, those fixed
costs do not go down; they stay right where they are. She provided a
breakdown of total revenue requirements at the time of the last rate increase
in June of 2005. Overall, there was an $8.7 million revenue requirement
needed from expected sales and a $500,000 margin was put in to provide a
cushion to provide capital improvements. Now, we are at $10.5 million
without having any margin. From the 2005 test year to the 2007, there has
been a 20.7% increase whereas there was only an 11.9% increase in expected
sales based on assumed weather-normalized in 2005 versus 2007. Ms. Brown
stated that part of the reason for an increase is because there are fewer units
for the amount of money we need to recover. Ms. Brown commented that
mild weather also really affects the system overall. She stated that there are
also some design issues, one being that interruptible customers are exercising
options to utilize alternative sources of fuel or switching to electric. She noted
that existing rates are mainly volumetric, or variable, giving the wrong price



Minutes of May 24, 2007

Page 9

signal to those customers with alternative sources and allowing avoidance of
CPW’s fixed costs of providing service incurred to serve them. She stated that
the reason is that CPW still has the fixed costs whether they use gas or not;
we have put in the pipes to serve them and when they compare to an
alternate source of fuel, they are looking at a variable cost on and avoid our
variable gas costs and also our fixed costs. Ms. Brown commented that we
know that some of these customers might want to provide their own gas and
transportation to the city gate. For that reason, we wanted to give them an
unbundled rate so that they could do that and we would provide a
“distribution only” rate that would be a fair rate to recover our cost of having
that distribution system in place to serve them. She pointed out that we
would not go all the way to a pure fixed variable type rate, but rather are
trying to move toward that with this rate design. Ms. Brown stated that they
were unbundling rates and implementing a pipeline demand charge
adjustment clause; would shift a portion of the cost recovery from volumetric
to demand and customer-based rates to reflect the nature of the cost curve
incurred; and developed a distribution rate. Ms. Brown summarized that the
pipeline demand adjustment clause would assure monthly recovery of
pipeline demand charges; would give a mechanism for handling FERC-
ordered refunds; shifts $3.5 million out of base rates and moves it into
another category with no margin; and by unbundling rates can get the
“distribution-only” rate and have them pay pipeline demand charges. They
pay gas costs if they are buying gas. “Distribution-only” customers would
only pay that rate. Ms. Brown explained the methodology for the pipeline
demand charge adjustment clause. She stated that it is allocated to classes
based on the previous year’s winter months’ sales because that is how we
have to contract for the capacity in any year going forward. She noted that it
is unfair to interruptible customers to allocate a full load because they do give
us the ability to manage somewhat and allow us to interrupt in cases where
there is not sufficient transportation capacity. 80% of cost is allocated to firm
classes only; only 20% is allocated to all classes which based on last year’s
winter months sales gives interruptible customers an overall allocation of
about 11% right now. The industrial rate would be based on maximum daily
quantities which allows for addition or loss of customers and give less ability
for customers to avoid fixed costs incurred to serve them. She noted that the
goal is a “zero sum” gain. Every month your bill is $300,000, that is what is
billed to customers and there will not be a plus or minus. She noted that
having interruptible customers allow CPW to save and those costs are saved
for everybody on the system. She continued that residential and commercial
total revenue requirements had increased approximately 7% overall, while
industrial revenue requirements have increased approximately 1.3% - to
1.7%. She noted a variance with customer impacts depending on usage.



Minutes of May 24, 2007
Page 10

Residential and commercial customers will experience larger increases in
summer and smaller increases in winter due primarily to Transco pipeline
demand charge recovery. Right now, because it is in base rates on a
volumetric-type rate, you are getting a much higher cost in winter than
summer. Now, the customer will pay what it really is in the winter and what
it really is in summer. Commissioner Monaghan asked for an explanation of
how the rate would increase if you only have a pilot light on during August.
Ms. Brown explained that the rate would increase because the pipeline
demand charge goes down from January to June; even though you have less
overall system pipeline demand charge, there are less units that you are
selling. When you divide the amount you have by the lesser unit, the unit
charge will be a little higher in summer than in winter for customers that are
paying this pipeline transportation cost. For the year, it comes to about to
about 7% overall. Commissioner Hancock noted that as a year-around user,
his rates would still go up. Some of those in the winter would get an
advantage by just having gas heat. Ms. Brown referred to residential
customer rate comparisons with other cities showing that the winters are still
slightly below the others they were able to get. She noted difficulty obtaining
this information because many cities have purchased gas adjustment clauses
that may be implemented differently. The summer charge showed us at the
top of those five but because we are so much lower in winter when people are
using a lot, overall it is still very fair over the year. Ms. Brown concluded the
report by providing an explanation of the Commissioners concerns over the
income statements appearing to show $2million in net income and questions
as to why there is a $1.7 million deficiency. She provided an example
whereby gas costs are incurred in December and are incurred in a calendar
month basis. When we pay our bill for gas for whatever we pay in December,
the customers are billed on cycles. The gas costs that we incur in December,
part are incurred and paid for then, but a bunch is paid for in January. You
have a lag between gas cost incurred and gas cost collected in a PGC. In the
net income report, the amount collected is not shown on the report the
Commissioners receive. It is not shown as a “Receivable” in December. We
have gas cost billed versus gas cost incurred. These are two different months;
there is a half of a month’s lag. For example, if you have cost of $2.1 million
gas in December, half of that is not collected until January. In April, you only
sell $600,000 of gas and half of that is not collected until May. The difference
between those two shows up in the income statement so that you are getting
half a month of December sales showing up in your revenue against cost that
are way lower because now you are looking at a “shoulder” month. For
purposes of the cost of service and rate study analysis, all of the gas cost is
removed because the PGC is designed to and the way the industrial
customers are charged is gas costs are simply a “pass-through”. There may be



Minutes of May 24, 2007
Page 11

a timing difference, but over time there will be a “zero” net income associated
with it. Ms. Brown stated that she has to remove that and show with all of the
other costs what is needed to be recovered. She referred to the most recent
report showing $2,063,000 at the end of April. In looking at rate making
adjustments, she explained that they first remove the net income associated
with gas cost recovered in the PGC which is the timing difference. That alone
was $1.24 million that was unbilled in December but showed up as a revenue
in January so there is a revenue in January that really did not have its’
associated gas cost in the net income statement. Of the $2 million, $1.2 million
was related to a prior period gas costs. If you take all of the gas cost out, and
all gas revenues out, this is “false” income. Commissioner Monaghan asked if
the “unbilled revenue” line would compensate for this phenomenon. Ms.
Ogletree responded that it would by the end of the summer when everything
would be fully accrued. Right now, it is on a modified accrual basis and
would be fully accrued at the end of the year. Future reports will have this
line and that will offset what Ms. Brown is explaining. Ms. Brown stated there
are issues with accounting rules and sometimes it is hard to reconcile the two,
but they hope to get information for ratemaking so they know what is needed
“cash-in-hand” to operate. Ms. Brown added because of the nature of a PGC
and how auditors say it has to be accrued cause issues. She and Ms. Ogletree
are trying to get to a point so that what is seen can be explained. For
ratemaking purposes, they are also saying that there are certain capital
expenditures that are going to be recovered from rates. Some capital
expenditures will be recovered from new debt service, but there are ongoing
capital expenditures that do not show up in the income statement because
those are the items that are accrued and depreciated over time. They have to
put them in because they have to have the revenue to recover those. They are
adding back the depreciation because for ratemaking purposes, they do not
use depreciation but instead use capital improvements plus the principal
payment. They are trying to get to more of a cash flow basis to know what is
needed in cash to run the system. They are adding back depreciation to the
net income because that is a “non-cash” item and instead subtracting out
principal and capital items. Then they subtracted revenue from CPW and
“muni-sales” because under the policy they have in the City, there is a $1.2
million transfer liability that consists of a certain amount that will be
transferred plus reimbursement of all of the “muni-bills”. Of the other
transfers to the General Fund, over the year equals $1.2 million for all three
systems. For this system over the year is showing at about $366,000. That is
not real revenue when it comes in one hand and out the other. For purposes
of January through April, $171,339 was taken out for Transco pipeline charge
increase. That increase was not really experienced in January and February
because it did not happen until March 1, but for purposes of setting rates on a



Minutes of May 24, 2007
Page 12

prospective basis, if that is not included, then you will under-recover for the
year. Then the PGC had an adder put in on a temporary basis for March and
April to recover the incremental cost of the pipeline demand charge increase
until they could determine how to handle the pipeline demand charge issue.
Therefore, in the net income you recovered $118,000 more than you really
would had you not had that adder. Ms. Brown stated that at the end of April,
there was really only $472,000 on a ratemaking basis. The reason there is a
profit there where a loss is shown for ratemaking purposes for the whole year
is because all of the gas is sold during January and February. It is expected
that you will have a bigger net income at the beginning of the year that will
keep eroding throughout the year. She stated that the major December
projections were done and added together to show that at year end based on
what we have to do, which is the January through April sales that are lower
than anticipated, we are looking at a $1.991 million shortfall as opposed to the
$1.751 that rates were designed around because they already had the
reduction. It is the nature of accounting statements versus what is actually
needed “cash-in-hand” in order to run and operate the system. Most of it
simply due to the timing difference on gas cost. Ms. Brown concluded the
presentation by noting concern that if an increase is not implemented at this
time, the debt service requirements would not be met because of the expected
increase in expenses relative to debt. This would be even more relevant with
the new bond issue. She stated that preliminary calculations showed that we
would not meet the coverage without it.

Chairman Watts opened the floor for public comment. Mr. Richard Monarch
of 404 Gatewood Drive inquired about the justification the pipeline people
gave for a $900,000 increase. Mr. Lemon responded that they went to the
Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) because there had not been a
rate increase since 2002, showed how much their cost had increased, and said
they needed the increase to allow for a return. FERC said they would grant
the increase subject to review. Then, it goes through a review by a whole host
of people. Mr. Lemon noted that CPW belongs to a group of municipals who
have hired attorneys to go in and look over Transco’s shoulder to justify those
rates. They look at every item on their cost structure and determine whether
it is justifiable. Once they get to a number, then there is a series of
negotiations between the ratepayers and Transco and then back to FERC. This
is an ongoing process that takes two to three years before completion. Mr.
Monarch asked about the history of these increases. Mr. Lemon responded
that the last one was in 2003. Mr. Monarch stated that from 2003 to 2007 is not
very long, and a $900,000 increase appears to be somewhat exorbitant. Mr.
Lemon stated that over a four-year period, it is $200,000 per year; on a $3
million bill that is less than 10%, adding that inflation has gone up that much.



Minutes of May 24, 2007
Page 13

Manager Reeves noted that we are dependent on the FERC to look over their
shoulders on everyone’s behalf. Ms. Brown added that there is nothing that
we can do about it, other than protest it along with everyone else. Mr. Mark
Litts of 108 Alma Street with Carolina Pride stated that they are an
“interruptible” customer, and that he had worked with Cary Bishop who sent
out a memo. He stated that in looking at it from a business perspective; they
are looking at an 8% to 12% increase on non-gas items if you take the gas out
of it because Ms. Brown had said it was just a pass-through. Mr. Litts referred
to last month’s bill and stated that he had confirmed that it was an 8% to 15%
increase on non-gas items. He continued by noting that after talking with
people this week who represent over 4,000 jobs in the area, it is a tremendous
concern because they cannot go straight to a customer with an 8% increase in
prices for the first six months and a 12% to 15% increase for the next six
months. Mr. Litts stated that their daily interruptible is very spiked. On the
month they were looking at it went anywhere from 8 to 526. He pointed out
the impact on business in Greenwood with a five-day operation such as
theirs. Mr. Litts commented on customers who move to Greenwood because
of business. He referred to a conversation with a gentleman who tries to
attract business to Greenwood who pointed out that things have to be made
attractive to attract business. He stated that if they just came to anyone with a
15% increase on their product, they would switch to another brand instead.
Commissioner Hancock asked what was used as alternate fuel. Mr. Litts
stated that he was not sure, it may be number six. Mr. Litts stated that the
demand charge on a five-day operation has a tremendous impact. Ms. Brown
stated that unfortunately, it was having a tremendous impact on CPW as
well. We ran out for 2006, and you have to include your gas cost because it is
part of your overall bill. Mr. Litts stated his understanding of something
presented earlier about gas cost being taken out. Ms. Brown responded that it
was removed for purposes of designing what they are going to get; they are
not going to get a margin on it. It is still part of your bill and overall we ran it
out for 2006 on the actual billing determinant for every one of the industrial
customers. Greenwood Packing Plant is 1.78% overall when you include gas.
Mr. Litts said that when you look at the non-gas charges, it is between 8% and
15%. Ms. Brown stated that she did not doubt that, but the total bill that they
would then have to collect from their customers and build into their costs is
going to include the gas cost. Manager Reeves asked Mr. Litts if they would
pay their bill and not pay for the gas. Mr. Litts responded that he had asked
about buying gas and the alternative was that if they “over bought” they
would be paying at the lowest rate, if they “under bought” they would be
charged the highest rate that CPW paid for the month. Mr. Lemon agreed that
would be true within certain percentages. He then explained that the way the
distribution system is set up it is so that what comes in goes out on a daily



Minutes of May 24, 2007
Page 14

basis. To the extent that they are either over or under, you had a severe effect
on the pipeline on our system. We would balance their gas takes during the
month on a monthly basis but on a daily basis they have to be within some
reason. One day you take zero, the next day you put in for 1,000 but only take
500, you have disrupted the entire system. There are then penalties to us and
it is not fair to the rest of the customers to pass those penalties back to them
when they did not cause them. We will balance on a monthly basis what your
contracted take on “distribution only” rate. Mr. Litts stated appreciation to
Mr. Lemon for addressing purchased gas. He then commented on staying
within the constraints of using all CPW, if there is one day when you are
doing something and it can be interrupted, which gets lower rates on the
pipeline, but they are then penalized for that one day. Ms. Brown responded
that the whole class is only being allocated 11% of the overall pipeline
transportation charges to begin with. They are getting a huge reduction over
what any other class gets. Basically, because they had relatively firm service,
the other customers are supporting that relatively firm service for them. Mr.
David Schwartz with Solutia stated that they are seeing the same thing in that
their load is not steady day to day. They are a seven-day operation and
internally as a plant they can manage things to steady their load. Some of that
would be done by putting on some oil rather than gas. He stated that from
what he gathered, the reason the rate structure changes are being proposed is
because it has changed for CPW. He stated an understanding that when they
go from 1,000 dt in a day to 1,300 because of the cold, CPW pays for that
above and beyond the cost of the gas, and Transco hits CPW for anything
above and beyond normal distribution. Mr. Lemon added that they still get
their gas. Ms. Brown added that the way the pipeline demand charge
allocation is being done is based on winter “through put”. When they are
getting the actual allocation and the rate is designed on an MDQ basis, but
the charges that go in are based on winter “through put”, if you have ups and
downs in the winter, that will not affect what is being allocated to that class. It
is just being done on an MDQ basis because once we have incurred the cost
from Transco and have that cost on the system, we do not want to send the
wrong price signal that allows everybody to avoid our fixed costs that have
now been incurred. She stated that we are designing it on an MDQ basis to
allow for those fixed costs that have been incurred to be recovered. Their ups
and downs will not affect the allocation. Mr. Schwartz asked about
calculating 1,000 dt per day based on the old rate system. He stated that he
looked at about a $3,000 increase in the non-gas fees based on that one day
increase for one day in the month with 1,300 dt. Ms. Brown responded that on
a pipeline demand charge, we are looking at “through put”. If the whole class
was 100 over 1,000, they would only get 10%. Now we take whatever that
cost is and divide by the MDQ to get the rate they will pay. That becomes a



Minutes of May 24, 2007
Page 15

IV.

VL

more fixed rate they will pay based on their maximum day so that it is not
based on “through put” and cannot decide they will go somewhere else for
two weeks of the month and avoid that cost. She stated that with the current
rate structure, they can avoid that cost but CPW does not avoid it and still has
to pay. That is why we are looking at changing to an MDQ rate but not an
MDQ allocation. Mr. Jim Barton with Fuji Film commented that a 15% rate
increase is pretty hefty, but appreciated the time that was taken to provide
the information and try to help everyone better understand what they are up
against. He stated a desire to monitor things and stay involved, and
expressed appreciation for CPW’s efforts to “true-up” the rates between
classes. Mr. Barton noted the importance of rates between classes being fair.
He added that obviously a lot of consideration was given to that effort.

With no further comments, Chairman Watts closed the floor for public
comments.

A motion was made by Commissioner Monaghan and seconded by
Commissioner Hancock to approve the minutes as submitted for the special
called meeting on April 3, 2007; the regular meeting on April 12, 2007; and the
regular meeting on April 26, 2007. The motion was unanimously approved.

Financial Statement:

The Commissioners noted that much of the financial statement was
covered during the presentation portion of the meeting. Commissioner
Monaghan noted the inclusion of “unbilled revenue” as a new item in the
report. Ms. Ogletree responded that they would true-up for the whole year in
January as if they had accrued in December’s statements.

A. Manager Reeves stated that the rate increase and revisions could be
approved with one motion if the intent was to approve everything as
recommended. Chairman Watts recommended the approval of water
and electric rate revisions separately, and a motion to approve the
revisions to water and electric rates as proposed was then =~ made by
Commissioner Monaghan, seconded by Commissioner Hancock, and
unanimously approved. Chairman Watts recommended approval of a
natural gas rate increase of 3.8%. A motion was made by
Commissioner Hancock, seconded by =~ Commissioner =~ Monaghan,
and unanimously approved. Manager Reeves pointed out the need
to establish an effective date for the rate increase and added that the
rate tariffs were prepared to be effective with the July 1, 2007 billing
for June consumption. He added that an effective date for the impact



Minutes of May 24, 2007
Page 16

fees was alsoneeded. A'°  motion was made by Commissioner
Monaghan, seconded by Commissioner Hancock, and unanimously
approved to have an effective date of June 1, 2007 for the rate changes
and impact fees.

B. Chairman Watts recommended acceptance of the low bid for uniforms
and lab coats from G & K Services, as well as the low bid on mats from
G & K Services. A motion was made by Commissioner Monaghan,
second by Commissioner Hancock, and unanimously approved to
accept the low bid.

C. Chairman Watts recommended acceptance of the low bid in the
amount of $11,932.30 from Kuhlman Instrument Company for nine (9)
Ultra K3 packages for testing and recording gas pressures.
Commissioner Monaghan inquired as to where these would be used.
Commissioner Hancock noted that Mr. Whittle had explained at the
last month’s meeting that the recorders would be used to check
pressure on residential meters and that there would be one on each
truck to know if someone has raised the pressure on the regulator. A
motion was made by Commissioner Monaghan, seconded by
Commissioner Hancock, and unanimously approved to accept the low
bid.

D. Chairman Watts recommended acceptance of the low bid from
Southern Cathodic Protection Services in the amounts of $19,400 for
item 2; $105 for item 3; and $4,000 for item 4. A motion was made by
Commissioner Hancock to accept the low bid as recommended; the
motion was seconded by Commissioner Monaghan, and unanimously
approved.

E. Chairman Watts recommended approval of the bid from Ivey Electric
in the amount of $442,400.00, based upon the recommendation from
Gary Mullis of Utility Technology, for the high service pump station
switchgear project at the water treatment plant. A motion was made by
Commissioner Monaghan, seconded by Commissioner Hancock, and
unanimously approved.

VII. Other Business:

1. Manager Reeves presented a request to adjust the stop loss limit for the
health insurance program. He noted that the stop loss is currently at



Minutes of May 24, 2007
Page 17

VIII.

$60,000, and that there would be a premium increase regardless of the
decision. Mr. Reeves explained that they are offering an opportunity to
increase the stop loss limit to $70,000 or $80,000. He stated that Ms.
Ogletree ran a report to compare our previous history at each stop loss
level. He noted that even if we increased the stop loss and payed a
lower premium, because we are incurring additional costs, our
overall cost is much greater, to the tune of about $100,000 per year.
Mr. Reeves recommended keeping the stop loss limit at $60,000 for
that reason. A motion was made by Commissioner Hancock to keep
the stop loss limit at $60,000; the motion was seconded by
Commissioner Monaghan, and unanimously approved.

Executive Session:

A motion was made by Commissioner Monaghan, seconded by
Commissioner Hancock, and unanimously approved to go into Executive
Session to discuss a personnel matter and a contractual matter.

The meeting returned to open session. Manager Reeves stated that based on
discussion during Executive Session, it would be appropriate for there to be a
motion for CPW to contribute up to $7,500 into the insurance program for
additional cost. A motion was made by Commissioner Hancock, seconded by
Commissioner Monaghan, and unanimously approved.

Manager Reeves noted the receipt of a request for an ad in the City Directory
at a cost of $1,472. Commissioner Monaghan noted that the last directory
contained outdated and incorrect information because they can no longer call
people to get updated information. Commissioner Hancock stated that he still
uses it to find names and addresses. Mr. Reeves suggested that since there is a
charge for listings and a charge for the ad, that the ad on the outside cover be
eliminated and just continue the listings. Mr. Reeves noted that a motion
was not necessary. The Commissioners requested copies.

IX. With no further business, the meeting was adjourned.

Approved: , 2007

Secretary



